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NEYCER INDIA LIMITED
NO.145, ST.MARYS ROAD, ALWARPET, CHENNAI – 600 018.

CIN:L26109TN1960PLC004145.

NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERSNotice is hereby given that the FIFTY SEVENTH Annual General Meeting of the Company will be heldon Friday,  the 28th September  2018 at  No.145, St. Mary’s Road, Alwarpet, Chennai 600 018 at 10.00.A.M to transact the following Business.
ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Accounts viz. the Balance Sheet, the Profit & LossAccount and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018 together with theReports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.
2. To appoint a Director in the place of Shri Y Mohan Prasad (DIN: 01888892) who retires byrotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. To re-appoint Mr. Ganapathy Krishnamoorthy as an Independent Director and in this regard,pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:
RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IVand other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the applicable provisions of theSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for thetime being in force), Mr. Ganapathy Krishnamoorthy (DIN: 07003301), who was appointed asan Independent Director and who holds office as an Independent Director up to August 13,2019 and being eligible, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of theCompany, not liable to retire by rotation and to hold office for a second term of 5 (five)consecutive years, i.e. up to August, 13, 2024.”

4. To re-appoint Mr. Bachiame as an Independent Director and in this regard, pass the followingresolution as a Special Resolution:
RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IVand other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the applicable provisions of theSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the
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time being in force), Mr. Bachiame (DIN: 07003301), who was appointed as an IndependentDirector and who holds office as an Independent Director up to August 13, 2019 and beingeligible, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable toretire by rotation and to hold office for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years, i.e. up toAugust, 13, 2024.”
Place: Chennai By Order of the BoardG.RaghavanDate: 14th August 2018. Company Secretary

NOTES:I. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTENDAND, ON A POLL, TO VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF. SUCH A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OFTHE COMPANY. PROXIES, IN ORDER TO BE VALID AND EFFECTIVE, MUST BE DELIVERED ATTHE REGISTERED OFFICE O-F THE COMPANY NOT LATER THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORETHE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.II. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the underlying rules viz. Companies(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, and the Amendment Rules 2015, a person can actas proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than tenpercent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights.III. The instrument appointing proxy (duly completed, stamped and signed) in order to be effectivemust be deposited at the registered office of the company not less than 48 hours before thecommencement of the 57th Annual General Meeting of the company.IV. Members would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged; at any time during the business hoursof the Company provided not less than three days written notice is given to the Company inadvance.V. The members/proxies are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report and duly filledAttendance Slips for attending the meeting.VI. Corporate Members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the Meeting arerequested to send a duly certified copy of Board Resolution on the letterhead of the Company,signed by one of the Directors or Company Secretary or any other authorized signatory and / orduly notarized Power of Attorney, authorizing their representatives to attend and vote on theirbehalf at the Meeting.
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VII. The equity shares of the Company are listed in The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited.VIII. The Register of Members and Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 21stSeptember, 2018 to 28th September, 2018 (both days inclusive).
V. Voting through electronic means:1) In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of theCompanies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations2015, the Company could not provide the e-voting facility to the members since the demat datacould not be got activated from the depositories through RTA. Hence voting by ballot paper atthe AGM venue is only arranged.2) The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equityshare capital of the Company as on the date of book closure 20th September 20183) Mrs. Lakshmmi Subramanian, Practicing Company Secretary, (Membership No.1087)has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the Ballot voting process (non-e-voting) atthe AGM in a fair and transparent manner.4) The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first countthe votes cast at the meeting and shall make, not later than 48hrs of the conclusion of the AGM,a scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or aperson authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result ofthe voting forthwith.5) The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the websiteof the Company immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a personauthorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSELimited, Mumbai.6) The manner of voting for Members being present in the AGM will be on “proportionprinciple” i.e. one share one vote unlike one person one vote principle as on record date of 20thSeptember 2018.7) The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which votingis to be held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer for all those members who arepresent at the AGM.
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8) Route Map showing directions to reach the venue of the 57th AGM is as under:

Place: Chennai By Order of the BoardDate:14/08/2018. ChairmanDIN-01888892.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

Item No.3Mr. Ganapathy Krishnamoorthy (DIN: 07003301) was appointed as an Independent Director ofthe Company and he holds office as an Independent Director of the Company up to August 13,2019 (“first term”). The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors, on thebasis of the report of performance evaluation, has recommended re-appointment of Mr.Ganapathy Krishnamoorthy as an Independent Director for a second term of 5 (five) consecutiveyears on the Board of the Company.The Board, based on the performance evaluation and as per the recommendation of the HRNRCommittee, considers that, given his background and experience and contributions made by himduring his tenure, the continued association of Mr. Ganapathy Krishnamoorthy would bebeneficial to the Company and it is desirable to continue to avail his services as an IndependentDirector. Accordingly, it is proposed to re-appoint Mr. Ganapathy Krishnamoorthy as anIndependent Director.Mr. Ganapathy Krishnamoorthy is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms ofSection 164 of the Act and has given his consent to act as a Director.The Company has also received declaration from Mr. Ganapathy Krishnamoorthy that he meetsthe criteria of independence as prescribed both under Section 149(6) of the Act and under theSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Ganapathy Krishnamoorthy fulfils the conditions for appointmentas an Independent Director as specified in the Act and the Listing Regulations. Mr. GanapathyKrishnamoorthy is independent of the management.Details of Mr. Ganapathy Krishnamoorthy, are provided in the “Annexure” to the Notice.Except Mr. Ganapathy Krishnamoorthy, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnelof the Company / their relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise,in the resolution.The Board commends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval bythe members.
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Item No.4Mr. Bachiame (DIN: 07003304) was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company andhe holds office as an Independent Director of the Company up to August 13, 2019 (“first term”).The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors, on the basis of the reportof performance evaluation, has recommended re-appointment of Mr. Bachiame as anIndependent Director for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years on the Board of theCompany.The Board, based on the performance evaluation and as per the recommendation of the HRNRCommittee, considers that, given his background and experience and contributions made by himduring his tenure, the continued association of Mr. Bachiame would be beneficial to the Companyand it is desirable to continue to avail his services as an Independent Director. Accordingly, it isproposed to re-appoint Mr. Bachiame as an Independent Director.Mr. Bachiame is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of theAct and has given his consent to act as a Director.The Company has also received declaration from Mr. Bachiame that he meets the criteria ofindependence as prescribed both under Section 149(6) of the Act and under the Securities andExchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015(“Listing Regulations”).In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Bachiame fulfils the conditions for appointment as anIndependent Director as specified in the Act and the Listing Regulations. Mr. Bachiame isindependent of the management.Details of Mr. Bachiame, are provided in the “Annexure” to the Notice.Except Mr. Bachiame, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company /their relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.The Board commends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval bythe members.
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Annexure to Notice
Details of Directors seeking re-appointment at the Forthcoming Annual General Meeting

{Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015}Name of the Director Mr. YALAMANCHALI MOHAN PRASADDate of Birth 27.06.1943DIN 01888892Date of Appointment 01/04/2017Relationship With Other Directors Not related to other directors

Expertise in Specific Function Area Experience in Business as entrepreneur for morethan  2 decadesQualification Graduate.Board Membership of the Other Companies as on 31.3.2018
Private Limited Companies DesignationM/s Neycer Unifort Ceramics Private Limited DirectorM/s Sriven Ventures India Private Limited Director
Chairmanship/Membership of the Committees of the Board of  Directors of the Company as on
March 31,2018Audit Committee MemberStake Holders Relationship Committee MemberNomination & Remuneration Committee Nil
Chairmanship/Membership of the Committees of Directors of other Companies in which he is a
Director as on March 31, 2018Audit Committee NAStake Holders Relationship Committee NANomination & Remuneration Committee NAShare Holding in the Company 2 shares
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Mr. Ganapathy KrishnamoorthyShareholding in the Company as on March 31,2018 NilRelationship with other Directors / KeyManagerial Personnel Not related to any DirectorNumber of meetings of the Board attended duringthe financial year (2017-18) 5Directorships of other Boards as on March 31,2018 NILMembership / Chairmanship of Committees ofother Boards as on March 31, 2018. NIL
Mr.BachiameShareholding in the Company as on  March 31,2018 NilRelationship with other Directors / KeyManagerial Personnel Not related to any DirectorNumber of meetings of the Board  attended duringthe financial year  (2017-18) 5Directorships of other Boards as on March 31,2018 NILMembership / Chairmanship of Committees ofother Boards as on March 31, 2018 NIL
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DIRECTORS’ REPORTDear Shareholders,Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Fifty Seventh Annual Report and Audited Accounts ofthe Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2018.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Rs.)

2017-18 2016-17Revenue from Operations 177038414 176970092Other income 8035086 6433634Total Income 185073500 183403726Profit before financial expenses, depreciation andexceptional items 47298529 48885507
-Less: Fianncial expenses 11007582 16200653Depreciation 10062294 10824064Profit for the year - 26,228,653 - 21,860,790Less: Provision for Income tax -Profit after tax - 26,228,653 - 21,860,790Add: Profit brought forward - -Amount available for appropriation - -Dividend on Equity Shares - -Tax on Dividend - -General Reserve - -Balance Profit carried to Balance sheet - 26,228,653 - 21,860,790
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PERFORMANCE AND STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANYThe Company has achieved Net sales of Rs 18.13 Crores for the year ended 31st March 2018 ascompared to Rs.19.50 Crores in the previous year.The Company has incurred a Net loss of Rs. 2.62 Crores as against a loss of Rs.2.18 Crores in theprevious year.The production during the year was marginally lower.  Under review, the production was 1878 tonnesas against 2097 tonnes during corresponding previous year. The production would have been higherbut the stoppage of operation for a period of 60 days due non availability of gas continuously andfrequent breakdown of machinery caused such fall in tonnes produced. Your company is confident ofimproving the operational performance in the forth coming years.
SHARE CAPITALThe paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2018 was Rs. 101669160. No additions andalterations to the capital were made during the financial year 2017-18. Out of the above 13,30,000shares are yet to be listed.
DIVIDENDConsidering the huge accumulated losses, your Board of Directors could not recommend any dividendto the shareholders for the financial year ended 31.03.2018.
TRANSFER OF PROFIT TO RESERVESThe company has not proposed to transfer any of its profits to reserves in view of the Carried forwardlosses.
MATERIAL CHANGE AND COMMITMENTS OF THE COMPANYThere were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the companywhich have occurred between the end of the Financial year to which the Financial statement relate andthe date of report, and there are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courtsor tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARNATEES OR INVESTMENTSThere have been no loan, guarantees and investment given or made by the company under Section 186of the Act during the financial year 2017-18.
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIESThe company does not have any subsidiaries associates and joint venture companies.
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BOARD MEETINGSThe Meetings of the Board were held periodically and 120 days has not lapsed between two meetingsas prescribed under section 173(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of attendance of themeetings are given in the Corporate Governance report.
AUDIT COMMITTEEThe Board of the Company had constituted the Audit Committee under the provisions of the CompaniesAct 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations and the details of the composition of the Audit Committee isfurnished in the Corporate Governance Report.
VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICYThe company has in place the Whistle Blower Policy. The said policy is in compliance with theprovisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the Listing Regulations. The quarterly reviews are submittedbefore the Audit Committee.
AUDITORS

Statutory AuditorsM/s. SNS ASSOCIATES, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.006297S) have been appointed asstatutory auditors of the company for a period of 5 (five) Consecutive years at the Annual GeneralMeeting held on 26th September 2017. Due to the amendment of section 139 of the Companies Act,2013, ratification of the Auditor’s appointment is not required any longer. His term shall expire on31.03.2022
COMMENTS ON AUDITOR REPORTWith reference to the observation of the Auditors in audit report, Managements comments are givenbelow:

Auditor’s Observation CommentsThe Company has not recognized interest onloans from banks aggregating to Rs. 639 lakhsupto the earlier years and also interest onloans from a body corporate aggregating toRs. 504 lakhs upto 31st March, 2018, as aresult of which the accumulated isunderstated by the said amounts

Due to bank account became NPA fromDecember 2006, the interest portion notrecognized in the book of accounts. We arediscussing with Bankers for one timesettlement. Positively this will over by end ofDecember 2018.
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SECRETARIAL AUDITORPursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Copies (Appointment andRemuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, the Board has appointed Secretarial Auditors toconduct secretarial audit for the financial year 2017-18.The Secretarial Audit Report as received from the secretarial auditor is annexed to this report asAnnexure II.
COMMENT ON SECRETARIAL AUDITOR REPORTWith reference to the remarks made by the secretarial auditor, in the Secretarial Audit Report, thecompany has taken the corrective measures during the current financial year.
INTERNAL AUDITORSAs per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 the company has M/s. R.Sundararaman & Co., as anInternal Auditor for the company for the financial year 2017-18.The Company proposes to continue their services and appoint M/s. R.Sundararaman & Co., as anInternal Auditor for the financial year 2018-19, to ensure proper and adequate systems and procedurescommensurate with its size and nature of its business.
PARTICULARS ON REMUNERATIONNo employee of the company was in receipt of the remuneration as specified in Rule 5(2) of theCompanies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules 2016 underSection 197(12) of the Companies Act 2013 and further in terms of the said rules no employee of thecompany holds by himself or along with his/her spouse and dependent children more than two percentof the equity shares of the company.
INTERNAL CONTROL AND ITS ADEQUACYThe internal auditors of the company regularly conduct audit and submit their quarterly reports, whichare reviewed by the Audit Committee. The company has an adequate Internal Control System,commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. To maintain its objectivity andindependence, the Internal Auditor reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board.During the year such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the design oroperation were observed.
HUMAN RESOURCESThe Management envisions trained and motivated employees as the backbone of the Company Specialattention is given to recruit trained and experienced personnel not only in the production departmentbut also in marketing finance and accounts. The Management strives to retain and improve employee’smorale. The company is in the process of revamping the employer employee engagement program.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE, EARNINGS
AND OUTGOThe particulars as prescribed under Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Account) Rules.2014 are as follows:
A. Conservation of EnergyAt present there is no manufacturing activity in the company. Hence the scope for conservation ofenergy is very limited. Hence reporting this clause is not applicable.
Details of Consumption of electricity

2017-18 2016-17Units (KWH) 11,88,810 10,66,600Cost (Rs.) 9.67 10.32Rate per unit(Rs.) 1,14,97,658 1,10,08,004
B. Technology Absorption:Your company is planning to adopt improved technology for better quality improvement, energysaving, materials consumption and reduction of wastages.
C. Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo:

Since the company has not carried on any export during the financial year under review, thedisclosures requirement relating to exports, initiatives taken to increase exports; development of newexport markets for products and services and export plans doesn't arise.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONSDuring the year 2017-18 the company had not entered into any contract/ arrangement/ transactionwith related parties which could be considered material as per sub-section (1) of Section 188 of theCompanies Act 2013. Hence the question of reporting under this requirement of said section does notarise.
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURNPursuant to sub-section 3(a) Section 134 and sub section 3 of section 92 of the Companies Act 2013read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2013 the extract of theAnnual Return as at March 31, 2017 in Form MGT-9 forms part of this report as ANNEXURE I.

2017-18 2016-17Earnings in Foreign Exchange NIL NILExpenditure in Foreigncurrency NIL NIL
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RISK MANAGEMENT POLICYThe risk management is overseen by the Audit committee of the company on a continuous basis,therefore constituting a Risk Management Committee does not arise. Major risks, if any, identified bythe business and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating action on a continuousbasis. The Risk Management policy is available in the company website www.neycer.in.
DISCLOSURE AS PER PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACEPresently the total number of employees is less than the statutory limit and hence the Company has notconstituted a separate committee under the Sexual Harassment of women at Workplace (Prevention,prohibition and Redressal) Act 2013.However the company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at work place. During the financialyear 2017-18 the company has not received any complaints.The policy is available in the company website www.neycer.in.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA detailed analysis of the company’s progress and future outlook is separately discussed in theManagement Discussion and Analysis Report, is appended to and forms part of the annual Report.
DEPOSITS FROM PUBLICThe company has not accepted any deposits form public and as such, no amount on account of principalor interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on date of the Balance sheet.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORTThe company is committed to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and adhere tothe corporate governance requirements, set out by SEBI. The report on Corporate Governance asstipulated under the Listing Agreement forms an integral part of this Report. The requisite certificatefrom the Auditors of the company confirming compliance with the conditions of corporate governanceis attached to the report on Corporate Governance.In terms of Regulation 34(3) and 53(f) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)Regulations 2015 the Corporate Governance Report, the Management Discussion & Analysis Statementand the Auditor’s certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance are part ofthis Annual Report as Annexure III.
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:The Board of Directors comprises of the One Whole-time Director and Three Independent / Non -Executive Directors out of which one is woman Director.
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During the year under review, Ramakrishnan Chittibabu resigned from the office on 29.11.2017 due topersonal reasons.Retirement by Rotation: Mr. Y Mohan prasad, shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and iseligible for re-appointment and he offers himself for re-appointment. Brief profile is mentioned in theNotice of forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the company.Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act 2013, the following are the KeyManagerial Personnel:Mr.Thirukalathiapan- Chief Financial OfficerS. Raghavan- Company Secretary
POLICY OF DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATIONCompany’s policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determiningqualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided under section178(3) of the Act are covered in Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Report. Further,information about elements of remuneration package of individual directors is provided in the extractof Annual Return as provided under Section 92(3) of the Act, is enclosed at Annexure I in theprescribed form MGT-9 and forms part of this Report.
DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:All independent Directors have been declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laiddown under Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013 which has been relied on by the Company andplaced at the Board Meeting of the Company.
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD, COMMITTEE AND DIRECTORSPursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 the Board has carried out an annual performanceevaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working ofthe Audit and Nomination & Remuneration Committees and the same as based on questionnaire andfeedback from all the Directors on the Board as a whole, Committees and self-evaluation.A structured questionaire was prepared after taking into a consideration inputs received from theDirectors,  covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the composition ofthe Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, ob ligationsand governance. A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individualDirectors including the Chairman of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level ofengagement.



16

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEEAs per the Companies Act, 2013  companies having a net worth of Rs.500 Crores or more, or a turnoverof Rs.1,000 Crores or more or a net profit of Rs.5 Crores or more during any financial year are requiredto constitute a CSR Committee.Your company is not having the above said net profits, net worth or turnover and therefore constitutingof a CSR committee in accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the Act does not arise.
MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURT, TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING
CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTUREThere are no significant/material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting thegoing concern status of your company except Adjudication order passed by SEBI by imposing penalties.Your company had appealed against the order of SEBI and order has been passed in this regard,reducing the penalty amount
DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENTPursuant to the provisions contained in the Section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Boardto the best of its knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanation obtained by itconfirm that:a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting standards had been followedand there were no material departures there from;b) the Directors had selected such Accounting policies and applied them consistently and madejudgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of thestate of affairs of the Company at the end of the 12 months period ended on 31st March, 2018 andof the profit of the Company for that period;c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accountingrecords in accordance with the provisions of the Companies  Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assetsof the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;d) The Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis;e) They have laid down internal financial controls, which are adequate and are operating effectively;f) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable lawsand such systems are adequate and operating effectively.
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ANNEXURE –I

Form No. MGT-9 EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on 31.03.2018[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILSCIN L26109TN1960PLC004145Name of the Company NEYCER INDIA LIMITEDRegistration date 12/05/1960Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company limited by shares / Indian Non-Government companyAddress of the Registered office and contactdetails No.145, ST MARY’S ROAD ALWARPET, CHENNAI600018Whether listed company Yes / No YesName, Address and Contact details of Registrarand Transfer Agent, if any Cameo Corporate Services LimitedSubramanian Building, No.1 Club House road,Chennai 600 002No.
PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANYAll the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall bestated:-

Sl. No Name and Description of main

products / services

NIC Code of the Product/

Service

% to total

turnover of the
company1 CERAMICS                                                323 85

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl.
No

Name and
Address of the company CIN/GLN

Holding/Subsidiar
y/Associate

% of
shares
held

Applica
ble
Section1 Sriven Realtors Pvt Limited(merged with Varun VenturesPvt Ltd) U72300TN1998PTC040542 Holding Company 59.10
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SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholder
s

No. of Shares held at the beginning
of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the
year

% of
Change
during
the year

Demat Physical Total % ofTotalShares Demat Physical Total % of TotalShares
A.
Promoters

(a) Indiana)Individual/HUF

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
b) CentralGovt Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nilc) StateGovt(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nild) BodiesCorp. 800000 6552960 7352960 72.43 800000 6552960 735296072.43 Ni
e) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nilf) AnyOther…. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub-total
(A)

(1):-

800000 6552960 7352960 72.43 800000 6552960 735296072.43 Nil(2) Foreigna) NRIs -Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nilb) Other –Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nilc) BodiesCorp Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nild) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nile)Anyother…. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub-total

(A)(2)

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total
shareholdin
g

of Promoter

(A) =
(A)(1)+(A)(
2)

800000 6552960 7352960 72.43 800000 6552960 735296072.43 Nil
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B. Public
Shareholdin
ga)Institution
sa) MutualFunds

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
b) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nilc) CentralGovt Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nild) StateGovt(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nile) VentureCapital FundsNil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
f) InsuranceCompanies 123735 5434 129169 1.27 123735 5434 129169 1.27 Nil
g) FIIs Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nilh) ForeignVenture Nil Nil 2464284 7.33 NilNil 2464284 24642847.33 NilNilCapital Fundsi) Others(specify)

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil nil Nil Nil
Sub-total

(B)(1):-

123735 5434 129169 8.60 123735 5434 129169 8.60 NilNil2. Non-Institutionsa)BodiesCorp.i) Indian Nil 2578641 2578641 25.40 Nil 2578641 257864125.40 Nilb)Individualsi)Individualshareholdersholdingnominalshare capitalin excess ofRs1 lakh

Nil 36605 36605 0.36 0 36605 36605 0.36 Nil

ii)Individualshareholdersholdingnominalshare capitalupto Rs. 1lakh
50 54491 54541 0.54 50 54491 9154541 0.54 Nil
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c)* Others(specify)(C-i )Clearingmember(C-ii) Trust(C-iii)ForeignNationals(C-iv) HUF(C-v) Non-ResidentIndians

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sub-total

(B)(2):-

50 266978 2669787 26.30 50 26697879737
2669787 26.30 NilTotal PublicShareholding(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

123785 2675171 2798956 27.57 123785 26751712798956

2798956 27.57
NilC. Sharesheld byCustodian forGDRs&ADRs Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Grand Total(A+B+C) 923785 9228131 10151916 100 923785 922813110151916 100.0
(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. No

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding

during the year
No of

Shares

% of total

shares of
the
company

No of

Shares

% of total

shares of the
company1 At the beginning of the year 7352960 72.43 7352960 72.432 Date  wise  Increase  /  Decrease  inPromoters Share holding during theyear specifying the reasons forincrease / decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc) Nil Nil Nil Nil

3 At the end of the year 7352960 72.43 7352960 72.43
Note : No Change in Promoters’ Shareholding
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v) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders
of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl. No Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

For Each of the Top 10

Shareholders

No of

Shares

% of Total
shares of the
company

No of

Shares

% of Total
shares of the
company1 CDS Projects Ltd 1330000 13.10 1330000 13.102 Sparta Holding Limited 1200000 11.82 1200000 11.823 LIC 113735 1.12 113735 1.124 Nidhya Rajeswari Guhan 19865 0.20 19865 0.205 Viswanathan R 16740 0.16 16740 0.166 The Oriental InsuranceCompanyLimited 10000 0.1 10000 0.17 Seetha Subramanian 8580 0.08 8580 0.088 The United India InsuranceCompanyLtd 5434 0.05 5434 0.059 Purnima Gupta 2100 0.02 2100 0.0210 R Rajagopala Thondaiman 2000 0.02 2000 0.02

vi) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Sl. No Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding

during the yearFor Each of the Directors

and KMP

No of

Shares

% of Total

shares of the
company

No of Shares % of

Total shares of
the company

1 Y MOHAN PRASAD 2 0 2 0At the beginning of the yearDate wise Increase / Decreasein Promoters Shareholding during the yearspecifying the reasons forincrease / decrease (e.g.allotment / transfer / bonus/sweat equity etc)

Nil Nil Nil Nil

At the end of the year (or onthe date of separation , ifseparated during the year)
2 0 2 0

2 B S SHAILENDAR Nil Nil Nil NilAt the beginning of the year



23

Date      wise      Increase      /Decrease in Promoters Shareholding during the yearspecifying the reasons forincrease / decrease (e.g.allotment / transfer / bonus/sweat equity etc)

Nil

At the end of the year (or onthe date of separation , ifseparated during the year)
INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Indebtedness at the

beginning of the financial
year

Secured

Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured

Loans

Deposits Total

Indebtedness

i. Principal Amount 49345018 0 0 49345018
ii. Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil
iii.Interest accrued but notdue Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (i+ii+iii) 49345018 0 0 49345018Change in Indebtednessduring the financial yearAdditionReduction -14850659 0 0 -14850659
Net Change -14850659 0

0
0 -14850659

Indebtedness at the end

of the financial yeari. Principal Amount 48294542 0 0 48294542
ii. Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
iii.Interest accrued but notdue 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 48294542 0 0 48294542
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNELRemuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:NILRemuneration to other directors:NILRemuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTDNIL
PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of

the Companies
Act

Brief

Description

Details of

Penalty /
Punishment/
Compounding
fees imposed

Authority

[RD / NCLT

/ COURT]

Appeal

made, if any
(give Details)

A. COMPANYPenalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NILPunishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NILCompounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
B. DIRECTORSPenalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NILPunishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NILCompounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULTPenalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NILPunishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NILCompounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL



25

ANNEXURE II
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For the financial year ended 31.03.2018
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members
NEYCER INDIA LIMITEDNo.145, Manasa Apartment,Saint Mary’s Road, Alwarpet,Chennai – 600 018.We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and theadherence to good corporate practices by M/s. NEYCER INDIA LIMITED (hereinafter called thecompany). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis forevaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed andother records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, itsofficers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We herebyreport that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year endedon 31st March, 2018, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that theCompany has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the mannerand subject to the reporting made hereinafter:We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other recordsmaintained by M/s. NEYCER INDIA LIMITED (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31stMarch, 2018 according to the provisions as applicable to the Company during the period of audit:(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder;(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder to the extentof Regulation 55A;(iv) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Boardof India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares andTakeovers) Regulations, 2011;
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b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)Regulations, 1992;c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share TransferAgents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client to theextent of securities issued;We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:v. Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and GeneralMeetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.vi. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges, where theequity shares of the Company are listed and the Uniform Listing Agreement entered with thestock exchanges pursuant to the provisions of the Securities Exchange Board of India (ListingObligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.vii. The following laws are specifically applicable to the Company:
 Environment Protection Act, 1986
 The Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Trans boundary Movement) Rules, 2008
 The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 and Rules made thereunder
 The Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981
 The Legal Metrology Act, 2009
 Customs Act, 1962
 The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act 1946It is reported that during the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions ofthe Act,Rules, Regulations and Guidelines (i-vi), as mentioned above and regarding point vii ,the process ofimproving in certain areas are being done except: -
 Dematerialization of the fresh issue of preferential issue during 2013 and still pending.
 Obtaining trading approval and still in the suspended Category.
 Compliance of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 in certain areas.
 Delay in filing of certain forms with MCA.
 Company is yet to update its website.We further report that there were no actions/events in the pursuance of:a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014and the Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2007 approved under the provisions of the Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock PurchaseScheme) Guidelines, 1999;
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b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2009;e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,2008;f) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to theextent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External CommercialBorrowings;Requiring compliance thereof by the Company during the Financial Year under review.We further report that, based on the information provided by the Company, its officers and authorizedrepresentatives during the conduct of the audit, in our opinion, the company is in the process ofestablishing adequate systems and processes to monitor and ensure compliance with other applicablegeneral laws viz., Industrial Laws, Environmental, Human Resources , labour laws and the followinglaws:
 Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
 Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948
 The Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970
 The Factories Act, 1948
 The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947
 The Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1923 & Rules
 Payment of Gratuity Act 1972 & Rules
 The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
 The Minimum Wages Act, 1948
 The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961
 Apprentices Act, 1961We further report, that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct andindirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review bystatutory financial auditor and other designated professionals.

We further report that:The Board of Directors of the Company is well constituted with proper balance of Executive Director,Non-Executive Director and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board ofDirectors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with theprovisions of the Act.Notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agendawere delivered and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications onthe agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded inthe minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.
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We further report that during the audit period events have occurred, which have a major bearing onthe Company’s affairs.
 The Company has not dematerialized the fresh issue of preferential issue during 2013 and yetto obtain trading approval and hence in the suspended Category due to non-payment of listingfee and pending compliance of certain formalities with NSDL.
 During the year under review, SEBI vide its Adjudication Order dated January 04, 2018 imposedpenalty for non- compliance of Minimum Public Shareholding and on appeal the matter wasdisposed in favour of company by reducing the penalty amount.
 The company had filed application before NCLT in continuation to the non-completion of BIFRformalities against Bank of India (Operating Agency) and pending disposal.

For LAKSHMMI SUBRAMANIAN & ASSOCIATES,-sd-P.S.Srinivasan.Associate PartnerFCS No.1090C.P.NO. 3122Place: ChennaiDate:31. 07.2018
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ANNEXURE-A

ToThe MembersNeycer India LimitedNo.145, Manasa Apartment,Saint Mary’s Road, Alwarpet,Chennai – 600 018.1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonableassurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done onthe random test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe thatthe processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accountsof the Company.4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance oflaws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.,5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification ofprocedures on a random test basis.6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor ofthe efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
For LAKSHMMI SUBRAMANIAN & ASSOCIATES-sd-

P.S.SrinivasanAssociate PartnerFCS No.1090C.P.NO. 3122Place: ChennaiDate: 31.07.2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

Economy overview:World economy was consolidating from the past slowdown and recovery was taking place in differentareas at different rates, in 2016. Developing countries were disappointed with slower growth thananticipated. In contract, recovery in high – income countries gained momentum and expected to growin 2016 and 2017. High income economies contributed more than 40% in the global growth in 2016and expected to contribute about half of the global growth in coming years.India is emerged as the growing economy and recorded a GDP growth rate of 6.8% in 2016, althoughlower than 7.9% recorded in 2015. However with stable new government along with various fiscal andstructural reforms, there is optimism about the positive GDP growth of India. With exportcompetitiveness and infrastructural development, IMF estimating GDP growth of India, at 7.2% in2017.
Sanitary ware Global Market:Global sanitary ware market is set to grow due to increased demand in housing sector, increasingsanitation levels in developing countries, increase in lifestyle and level of standard of leaving.
Sanitary ware Indian Market:India has emerged as the major bath and sanitary ware market in Asia specific region. The sanitaryware market in India has grown rapidly during the last few years as many new international playershave entered in Indian market as well many existing players have increased their production capacity.In thrust to grab bigger market share and to provide a complete bathroom solution, many Indian tilesmajor, have forayed into this business, making market more competitive.Increase in housing sector demand, urbanization and government initiatives for sanitation in ruralIndia are the demand drivers for the sector. Increasing purchasing power and lifestyle spending hasalso created demand for upper end products in India.There are wide opportunities for ceramics and sanitary ware industry in India considering variouspositive factors and optimistic outlook. The major growth drivers for the industry are:
Export potential:With the change in Chinese economy and increased cost of manufacture, Indian sanitary ware becameprice competitive in the global market. Further with impose of anti-dumping duty on the Chinesesanitary ware by many countries, Indian manufactures has better prospect for export. Also fall in rupeehas given added advantage for export making better realization.
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Urbanization and increase sanitation:Increasing urbanization and sanitation will create more demand for the sanitary ware in the comingyears. Urbanization is increasing year on year. The awareness for the basic sanitation is also SWOTanalysisStrengths:
 State of the art plants, located ideally in the upcoming state of Gujarat.
 Availability of skilled human resources.
 Multi product company offering complete tiling and bathroom solutions.
 Quality product and established brand.Weakness:

 Working capital shortage and severe liquidity crunch
 Increasing uncontrollable fuel cost
 Low capacity utilization affecting the cost.Opportunities:
 Increasing urbanization and development of cities.
 Increasing basic sanitation in rural India with the government’s initiatives
 Export opportunities
 Change in spending pattern of consumers with the increase in disposable income.Threats:
 Changing technology
 Growing brand equity of competitor
 Increasing entry of MNC’s in the sector.
 Domestic players are becoming multi Product Company.

Conclusion and Future outlook:The company has managed its operation with limited working capital and stretched cash flows. Themain objective of the company is to run the plant with each possible way and utilize each and everyavailable resources, which will not only maintain the value of the plant but also the value of the brandequty of the company. The company is known for its quality products. This has helped company inincreasing its capacity and reduction in cost, in sanitary ware.There is good demand for the company’s artificial marble in the market due to its quality. However dueto limited working capital, company could not complete the demand. There is huge potential in theindustry due to huge demand from real estate and infrastructure sector. Also the anti-dumping dutyimposed on Chinese products, increasing cost of production in china and falling rupee has created moreopportunity for export of the Indian tiles and sanitary ware industry.
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Considering the immense opportunities in the market, company will achieve its goals and target in thecoming years and surpass all the hurdles with its experience and support of all associates.
Financial statement analysis:Key financial informationThe overall operations of the company continued to remain in stress due to liquidity mismatch andworking capital shortages.The company has not done any business in tiles division. Company’s tile’s plant was also not run formajor part of the year due to working capital shortage inspite of the demand for the company’s tiles inthe market.Revenue:Turnover during the financial year 2015-16 was Rs. 17,69,70,092/- as against Rs. 177,038,41/- duringthe previous year, recorded decrease by Rs. 68,322/-. Revenue is contributed by sanitary ware division.
Risk management:Identification of risk and its mitigation is the continuous process. The company regularly assesses therisk involved in the business and tried to mitigate with the available resources. The company hasidentified some of the risk with possible measures as under:

o Competition risk:Increased completion in the sector from various established players and new entrantsmay affect the company’s revenue.Mitigation:Supply of quality products with timely delivery and maintaining the relationship withthe customers, will keep the company ahead from competition.
o Loss of brand recall:Low spending on the brand promotion and negative marketing by competitors mayaffect brand image of the company.Mitigation:The company has created strong brand in the segment and known for its quality.  Withease in future cash flows, the company may increase the brand spend and can increasethe visibility of brand in near future.
o Technology change:Changing technology, especially in sanitary ware segment may affect the revenue of thecompany.Mitigation:The company’s sanitary ware plant is of latest technology only. However even thoughthe plant needs to be upgraded with minimal critical capex, the company can produce
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best products from the existing plant with its limited resources which has the demandin the market.
Human resources:The company continues to maintain cordial and healthy relationship with the human resources. Thecompany keeps safety and health programs for manpower. It continues to motivate the manpower andprovides training in the desired areas.
Internal control:The company has adequate internal control system and internal audit, commensurate with the size ofthe business. All the transactions are recorded in proper manner duly authorized and verified by theconcern authorizes and reported accordingly.Internal audit and statutory audit are part of internal control system and done by independent auditorsand audit committee regularly reviews the same.
Cautionary statement:The statement in the management discussion and analysis report cannot be construed as holding putany forecasts, projections, expectations, invitations, offers, etc. within the meaning of applicablesecurities, laws and regulations. This report basically seeks to furnish information as laid down withinthe different headings to meet the listing agreement requirements.
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ANNEXURE III
COMPLIANCE REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Mandatory Requirements:

1. Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance CodeNeycer India Limited believes in continuous good corporate governance and always strives toachieve performance at all levels by adhering to corporate governance practice, such as –
 Fair and transparent business practice
 Effective Management Control by the Board
 Adequate representation of promoter, executive and independent directors
 Legal and Statutory compliances in its true spirit
 Promote ethical and responsible decision making

 Board of Directors
Composition and category of Board of Directors.The composition of Board of Directors of the Company is in conformity with Regulation 17 of theSEBI Listing Regulations and section 149 of the Companies Act 2013. The Board of Directorscomprises of one Whole-time Director and Three Independent / Non - Executive Directors out ofwhich one is a Woman Director.  To be in line with the company’s philosophy on CorporateGovernance, all statutory subjects are placed before the Board to discharge its responsibilities astrustees of the shareholders.
The composition and category of Directors is as follows:-

S.no Name of the Director Category Number of
Directorshi
ps held in

other
Indian

companies

Number of
Board /

Committee
memberships
held in other

companies

No. of
Shares
held in

the
Company

1. Mr. Y.Mohan Prasad Whole-time Director 3 Nil 22. Mr.GanapathyKrishnamoorthy Non – Executive /Independent Director 0 Nil 0
3. Mr. Bachiame Non – Executive /Independent Director 0 Nil 0
4. Mrs. Jayalakshmi Non – Executive /Independent Director 0 Nil 0
5. Mr. RamakrishnanChittibabu (resigned witheffect from 29.11.2017) Non – Executive /Independent Director 0 Nil 0
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a) BOARD MEETINGS, ATTENDANCE OF EACH DIRECTOR AT THE BOARD MEETINGS AND
THE LAST AGM:-During the year under review seven Board Meetings were held and the gap between two Boardmeetings did not exceed four months. Among other things, key matters like periodic financialresults, Company’s Annual Financial Results, Financial Statements, Auditor’s report and Board’sReport, diversify the business of the company, Terms of reference of Board Committees, capital /operating budgets and risk management are brought to the Board.b) DATE OF BOARD MEETINGS:During the financial year 2017-2018 - Five (5) Board meetings and one Annual General Meetingwere held on the following dates: 30.05.2017, 23.08.2017, 11.09.2017, 11.12.2017, 14.02.2018.AGM was held on 26th September 2017.

a) THE ATTENDANCE OF THE DIRECTORS AT THE BOARD MEETING/ AGM HELD DURING THE
YEAR ARE GIVEN BELOW:

S.no Name Category No. of
Board

Meetings
held

during
the

tenure of
the

Director

No. of
Board

Meetings
Attended

Last AGM
attendance

(Yes/No)

1. Mr. Y.Mohan Prasad Whole-time Director 5 5 Yes
2. Mr.GanapathyKrishnamoorthy Non – Executive /Independent Director 5 5 Yes
3. Mr. Bachiame Non – Executive /Independent Director 5 5 Yes
4. Mrs. Jayalakshmi Non – Executive /Independent Director 5 5 Yes
5. Mr. RamakrishnanChittibabu (resignedwith effect from29.11.2017)

Non – Executive /Independent Director 3 3 Yes
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1. Board CommitteesAs required under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Jayalakshmi is the WomenDirector on the Board of the Company.
2. Audit CommitteeAs required under section 177(8), the Audit Committee comprises of 2 Non-ExecutiveIndependent Directors and Whole-time Director. The Committee was chaired by IndependentDirector, Mr. G Krishnamoorthy with requisite qualification. In the opinion of the Board ofDirectors, all the members of Audit Committee are financially literate and also have accountingor related financial management experience.The Audit Committee monitors and provides effective observation of the financial control andreporting process, review the financial reporting process, internal audit process, adequacy ofinternal control systems, review of performance of Statutory Auditors, recommendingappointment of Statutory, Internal Auditors recommending the Audit fees and also payment forother services.During the year ended on 31.03.2018, 4 meetings of the Audit Committee were held on30.05.2017, 11.09.2017, 11.12.2017 and 12.02.2018, The Chairman of the Audit Committee hasthe accounting or related financial management expertise.

Name of the Director
No. of
Meetings
held

No. of
Meetings
attendedG Krishnamoorthy 4 4Bachiame 4 4Ramakrishna Chittibabu(resigned with effect from29.11.2017) 2 2

Y Mohan Prasad 4 4
The Audit Committee reviewed the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements of theCompany before submission to the Board of Directors. The Committee also reviewed InternalAudit Reports, related party transactions, etc., from time to time. It has also taken on record theappointment of Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and Cost Auditors and recommended tothe Board the remuneration payable to them.
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The role of Audit Committee and terms of reference specified by the Board to the ndra AuditCommittee are wide enough to cover the mandatory items, as required, under clause 49 of theListing Agreement.
 Review of the Company’s financial reporting process, the financial statements andfinancial / risk management policies.
 Review Quarterly, Half-yearly and Annual Financial Accounts of the Company anddiscuss with Auditors.
 To meet and review with External and Internal Auditors the Internal Control Systemsand to ensure their compliance.
 To review matters as required under the terms of Listing Agreement.
 To investigate matters referred to it by the Board.

3. Nomination and Remuneration CommitteeThe Board has reconstituted Nomination and Recruitment Committee with the directors to lookafter the appointment, promotions and payment of remuneration to the working directors andsenior executives of the company. The members of the Committee are Mr G KrishnamoorthyChairman and Mr Bachiame and Mrs Jayalakshmi Members. The Committee met Four timesduring the year as per the details given below:
S.no Name Category of

Membership
Meetings

held
Meetings
Attended1 G Krishnamoorthy Chairman 4 42 Bachiame Member 4 43 Ramakrishna Chittibabu(resigned with effectfrom 29.11.2017) Member 2 2

4 Jayalakshmi Member 2 2
a) Composition:The company has constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board ofDirectors. None of the directors draw any remuneration. The actual travel and incidentalexpenses incurred for attending meetings are only reimbursed.
b) Remuneration Policy:During the year no remuneration/ sitting fee was paid to the Directors.
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4. Stakeholders Relationship CommitteeScope of the CommitteeThe Stakeholders Relationship Committee is functioning to look into redressal of investor/shareholders complaints expeditiously. The stakeholders Relationship Committee is primarilyesponsible to reiew all matters connected with the Company’s transfer of securities andredressal of shareholders/ investors/ security holders complaints.
The committee also monitors the implementation and compliance with the company’s code ofconduct for prohibition of Insider Trading.The stakeholders Relationship Committee’s composition and the terms of refrerence meet with therequirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and the Provisions of the Companies Act 2013.Four meetings were held during the Financial year 2017-18The composition of the Shareholders Relationship Committee as on March 31, 2018 during thefinancial year 2017-18 were as under:

Name of the Director Status in the
committeeGanapathyKrishnamoorthy ChairmanBachiame MemberRamakrishnan Chittibabu(resigned with effect from29.11.2017) Member

Y Mohan Prasad MemberNumber of complaints received from the investors during the year 2017-18 and their status are asfollows.No. of Complaints received NILNo. of Complaints disposed of NILNo. of Complaints pending at the year end NIL
Mr. G Raghavan, Company Secretary is the compliance officer of the Company
COMPLIANCE WITH CLAUSE 49The company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the ListingAgreement relating to Corporate Governance. The company has also adopted the non-mandatoryrequirement of Clause 49 to the extent of Remuneration Committee.
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CODE OF CONDUCTThe Board of Directors of the company has framed a Code of Conduct for applicable to all Directorsand the Senior Management Personnel ofyour company. The said Code of Conduct has alsobeenposted on the website of the company. The Board members and Senior Management Personnelhave affirmed their compliance with the Code of conduct for the year 2017-18. A declaration signedby the Directors of the company to this effect is enclosed at the end of this report.
Corporate Social Responsibility CommitteeAs per the Companies Act, 2013  companies having a net worth of Rs.500 Crores or more, or aturnover of Rs.1,000 Crores or more or a net profit of Rs.5 Crores or more during any financialyear are required to constitute a CSR Committee.Your company is not having the above said net profits, net worth or turnover and thereforeconstituting of a CSR committee in accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the Act dosnot arise.

Disclosure

Related Party Transactionsa. During the financial year 2017-18 there were no materially significant transactionsentered into between the Company and its Directors or Management including seniormanagement, their subsidiaries or relatives that may havepotential conflict with theinterests of the company at large. Further, details of related party transactions form partof notes to the accounts of the Annual Report.b. Accounting Treatment:The company followed the guidelines of Accounting Standards laid down by the Instituteof Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) in preperationof its financial statements. Duringthe financial year, no differential accounting treatment was followed.c. Strictures / penaltiesSEBI has passed Adjudication order imposing penalty while the company had appealedagainst the order of SEBI .d. Proceeds from public issues, right issues, preferential issues;During the year 2017-18 the company did not raise money from public issue and rightissue.
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e. The Company has a formal whistle blower policy and access to Audit Committee is madeavailable to every employee.
5. Code of ConductThe Board of Neycer India Limited has laid down a code of conduct for all the Board membersand the Senior Management. All the Board members and the Senior Management personnelhave affirmed compliance of the code. A declaration of WTD /Chairman of the Company isattached to this Annual Report.
6. Means of Communication

 The annual, half yearly and quarterly results are forthwith being submitted to the StockExchanges where shares are listed and are available on their website.
 Management discussion and analysis forms part of the Annual Report.

7. General Shareholder Information
 The 57th Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on  28th September 2017 atthe Registered office at 145 ST Mary’s street, Alwarpet, Chennai 600 018 at 10.00 a.m.
General Body MeetingsThe location and time of Annual General Meetings (AGM) held during the last 3 years are asfollows:
AGM Date Time Venue

No. of
Special
Resolutions
Passed2015 30.09.2015 2.00 pm 33/24A, Ranjith Road,Kotturpuram, Chennai-85. NIL

2016 30.09.2016 9.00 am No.145, St.Mary’s Road,Alwarpet, Chennai – 600 018. NIL
2017 26.09.2017 10.00 am No.145, St.Mary’s Road,Alwarpet, Chennai – 600 018. 1

Postal BallotDuring the Financial year, there were no ordinary or special resolutions passed by the Membersthrough Postal Ballot.
Extra Ordinary General Meeting during the last three yearsNo Extra Ordinary General Meeting was held during last three financial years.Book closure date:
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21st September 2017 to 28th September 2017 (both days inclusive)Tentative Financial Calendar:   April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2018Results for the quarter ending June 2018 Within 45 days from the end of the quarterResults for the quarter ending September2018 Within 45 days from the end of the quarter
Results for the quarter ending December,2018 Within 45 days from the end of the quarter
Results for the quarter ending March 31,2019 Audited results within 60 days from the endof the quarterAnnual General Meeting September 28, 2017

8. Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2018.

Slab of
Shareholding Shareholders

% Shares

(in Rs.)

%

1 – 5000 648 96 358710 0.35335001– 10000 8 1.1851 56060 0.055210001– 20000 2 0,02962 33740 0.033220001– 30000 1 0.1481 21000 0.020630001– 40000 0 0 0 040001– 50000 0 0 0 050001–100000 5 0.7407 379270 0.3735100001&above 11 1.6296 100670380 99.1639
TOTAL 675 100 10151916 100
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9. Distribution of shareholding pattern according to categories of shareholders as on March
31, 2018

Category No. of shares
Held

% of share
holdingA PROMOTER HOLDING

1
PromotersIndian PromotersForeign Promoters

73529600 72.4302 Persons acting in concert Nil NilSub Total 7352960 72.43B NON PROMOTERS HOLDING
3

Institutional investorsMutual funds an UTIBanks, financial institutionsInsurance companies (Central/ state Govt.Institutions/ Non govt. institutions)
129169 1.27

C  FIIs Nil Nil5 Sub Total 129169 1.27
10. Details of demat sharesThe detail of shares dematerialised cannot be furnished due to pendency of listing approvalfrom the Bombay Stock Exchange.

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATIONA certificate as stipulated in Clause 49(v) of the Listing Agreement duly signed by thecompliance officer on financial statements of the company is enclosed to this report.



43

CERTIFICATION BY AUDITORSAs required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Statutory Auditors of the CompanyM/s. SNS Associates have verified the compliances of the Corporate Governance and theCompany has obtained affirming the compliance from them and the same is annexed to thisreport and forms part of the Annual Report.
DECLARATION UNDER COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCTIn accordance with sub clause 1(D) of Clause 49 o the Listing Agreement with the StockExchanges, we hereby confirm that all the Directors and the Senior Management Personnelhave affirmed compliance with their respective code of conduct as applicable tot hem, for theyear ended 31st March 2018 For and on behalf of the Board,-sd-Chairman
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CEO/CFO CERTIFICATIONTo,The Board of Directors,Neycer India Ltd.,Chennai.I, P.Thirukalathiapan, Chief Financial Officer of Neycer India Ltd. to the best of my knowledge and beliefhereby certify that:1. I have reviews the Balance sheet and Profit and loss account and all its schedules and noted onaccounts, as well as the cash flow statements for the year ended, 31st march 2018.2. Based on my knowledge and information, these statements do not contain any untrue statement of amaterial act or omit to state a material fact necessary to make statements made, in light of thecircumstances under which such statement were made, not misleading with respect to the statementsmade.3. Based on my knowledge and information, the financial statements, and other financial informationincluded in this report, present in all material respect, a true and fair view of affairs of the company, thefinancial condition, results of operation and cash flows of the company as of and for, the periodpresented in this report and are in compliance with the existing accounting standards and/orapplicable laws and regulations.4. To the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the yearare fraudulent, illegal or violate of the code of conduct of the company.5. I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and Ihave evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control system of the company pertaining to financialreporting and I have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design ofoperation of the internal controls, if any, of which I am aware and the steps have been taken or proposeto take to rectify these deficiencies.6. I have disclosed based on my most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the company’s auditorsand the audit committee of the company’s Board of Directors (and persons performing the equivalentfunctions).a. Significant changes in internal controls over financial reporting during the year, if any, and that thesame have been disclosed in the notes of financial statements.b. All significant changes in accounting policies during the year, if any, and that the same have beendisclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
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c. Instances of significant fraud of which have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of themanagement or an employee having significant role in the company’s internal controls systems overfinancial reporting. For NEYCER INDIA LTD.,-sd-P. Thirukalathiapan.Chief Financial Officer.
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE

To the Members of

Neycer India LimitedWe have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Neycer India Limited, forthe year ended March 31, 2018 as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Companywith Stock Exchange(s).The Compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management.  Ourexamination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company forensuring the compliance of conditions of the Corporate Governance.  It is neither an audit nor anexpression of opinion on the financial statements of the company.In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, wecertify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in theabove-mentioned Listing Agreement.We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Companynor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of theCompany.
For SNS Associates,

Chartered AccountantsFirm Regn No: 006297S.-sd-
S.Nagarajan.

PartnerMembership No. 020899.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF

NEYCER INDIA LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial StatementsWe have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of NEYCER INDIA LIMITED (“theCompany”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2018, Statement of Profit and Loss(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash FlowStatement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and otherexplanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial StatementsThe Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of theCompanies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of the standalone financial statementsthat give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including othercomprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the IndianAccounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies IndianAccounting (Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted inIndia.This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with theprovisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detectingfrauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies, makingjudgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and design, implementation andmaintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring theaccuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from materialmisstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s ResponsibilityOur duty is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards andmatters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and theRules made thereunder.We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standardson Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply withethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether thestandalone Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and thedisclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on theauditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standaloneInd AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, theauditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standaloneInd AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that areappropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of theaccounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’sDirectors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis forour audit opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements.
Basis for Qualified Opinion

As stated in Note No.30, the Company has not recognised interest on loans from Banks aggregating to
Rs.639 lakhs upto the earlier years and also interest on loans from a body corporate aggregating to Rs.504
lakhs upto 31st March 2018, as a result of which the accumulated is understated by the said amounts.

OpinionIn our opinion and to the best of our information, and according to the explanations given to us, except
for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion Paragraph, the aforesaidstandalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner sorequired and give an true and fair view in conformity with the accounting practices generally acceptedin India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31st March2018 and its Profit (financial performance including Other Comprehensive Income), the cash flows andthe Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.
Other MattersThe comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2017 and thetransition date opening Balance Sheet as at 1st April 2016 included in these standalone Ind AS financialstatements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordancewith the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2996, audited by the predecessor auditor whosereport for the year ended 31st March 2017 and 31st March 2016 dated 27th July 2017 and 29th July 2016respectively expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, as adjusted for thedifferences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to Ind AS, which havebeen audited us.Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.
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Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order 2016. Issued by the Central Government interms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified inparagraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of ourknowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company sofar as it appears from our examination of those books.c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), theCash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are inagreement with the books of account.d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the IndianAccounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31st March 2018and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31stMarch 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of thecompany and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to separate report in” Annexure B ”.g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance withRule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and according to theexplanations given to us:i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position inits standalone Ind AS financial statements. [Please refer Note No.27(d) to 27(i).ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts forwhich there were any material foreseeable losses.iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the InvestorEducation and Protection Fund by the Company during the year.ChennaiDated: 29th May 2018
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Neycer India Limitedi) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitativedetails and situation of fixed assets.(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the Management during the year and nomaterial discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the periodicity of theverification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.ii) Physical verification of inventories has been conducted by the Management at reasonableinte4rvals and material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limitedliability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 ofthe Companies Act, 2013.iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company hascomplied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect ofthe investments made by it.v) The Company has not accepted deposits from the public.vi) We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company in respect of productswhere the Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section(1) of section 148 of the Act, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed recordshave been maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the records witha view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of ourexamination of the records of the Company, the amounts deducted/accrued in the books ofaccounts in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees stateinsurance, excise, income tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess andother statutory dues have been deposited belatedly by the Company with appropriateauthorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, the followingundisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees state insurance, incometax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, excise, service tax, cess and other statutory dueswhich were in arrears as on 31st March 2018 for a period of more than six months from the datethey became payable:
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Details AmountExcise Duty 1,13,72,430Tamil Nadu Sales Tax Collection 4,30,469Goods and Services Tax 32,16,037(b) There are no dues of income tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, excise, servicetax, cess or other statutory dues that have not been deposited on account of any dispute exceptthe following:Name of theStatute Nature ofDues AmountDisputed AmountPaid Forum where thedispute is pendingTamil NaduGeneral Sales taxAct Sales tax 93,20,618 NIL DeputyCommercial taxOfficerTNGST Act Sales tax 3,44,15,091 NIL Appellate AssistantCommissioner (CT)CST Act CST 50,56,861 NIL Appellate AssistantCommissioner (CT)TN VAT Act VAT 57,93,862 NIL Hon’ble High Courtof MadrasESI Act ESI 6,47,330 1,61,890 ESI Labour CourtPF Act PF 47,22,090 NIL EmployeesProvident FundAppellate Tribunal,Delhi
viii) The Company has defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks or financial institutions. TheCompany does not have any outstanding debentures.ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer(including debt instruments). As per the records of the Company, the term loans availed duringthe year were applied for the purposes for which those are raised.x) As per the records of the Company and according to the information and explanations given tous, no frauds on the company by its officers or employees have been noticed or reported duringthe year.xi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid/providedany remuneration to its managerial personnel since their appointment is without anyremuneration.
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xii) The Company is not a nidhi company.xiii) In our opinion, all transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements asrequired by the applicable Accounting Standard.xiv) According to the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotmentor private placement of its shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the yearunder review.xv) Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given to us, theCompany has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the Directors or personsconnected with the Directors.
xvi) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45IA of the ReserveBank of India Act, 1934.
ChennaiDated: 29th May 2018



53

“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Neycer India Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NEYCER INDIA LIMITED(“the Company”) as of 31st March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financialstatements of the company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial ControlsThe Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controlsbased on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company consideringthe essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal FinancialControls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Theseresponsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financialcontrols that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detectionof frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timelypreparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditor’s ResponsibilityOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financialreporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit ofInternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards onAuditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act,2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit ofInternal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. ThoseStandards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan andperform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controlsover financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in allmaterial respects.Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internalfinancial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit ofinternal financial controls system over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding ofinternal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on theassessed risk. The procedure selected depends on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment ofthe risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis forour audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReportingA Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to providereasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financialstatements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. ACompany’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and proceduresthat (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect thetransactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company,  (2) provide reasonable assurance thattransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordancewith generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company arebeing made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial ReportingBecause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including thepossibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due toerror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internalfinancial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internalfinancial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, orthat the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
OpinionIn our Opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls systemover financial reporting and such internal financial Controls over financial reporting were operatingeffectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteriaestablished by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in theGuidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Instituteof Chartered Accountants of India.
ChennaiDate: 29th May 2018
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NEYCER INDIA LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2018

Figures as at
the end of the

current
reporting

period

Figures as at the
end of the
previous

reporting period
Figures as at the
transition date

ASSETS
Note
No. 31-3-2018 31-3-2017 1-4-2016

Non Current Assets

i) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 135,985,116 145,071,060 153,500,398ii) Capital Work in Progress -iii) Financial Assetsa) Investments 5 150,000 150,000 150,000b) Other Financial Assets 6 2,099,812 3,852,987 3,727,200iv) Deferred Tax Assets 46,434,994 46,434,994 46,434,994Total Non current Assets (A) 184,669,922 195,509,041 203,812,592
Current AssetsInventories 7 74,089,579 72,257,662 78,136,010i) Financial Assets

a) Trade Receivables 8 31,734,605 32,902,532 35,150,348b) Cash and cash equivalents 9 3,411,797 2,766,320 2,616,949
ii) Otherr current assets 10 31,113,421 27,897,430 24,998,542Total current assets (B) 140,349,402 135,823,944 140,901,849
Total Assets (A)+(B) 325,019,324 331,332,985 344,714,441
EQUITY AND LIABILITIESEquitya) Equity Share Capital 11 101,519,160 101,519,160
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101,519,160b) Other EquityReserves and Surplus 12 -167,127,202 - 146,649,620 - 130,455,337Total Equity ( c ) -65,608,042 - 45,130,460 - 28,936,177
LIABILITIES
Non Current Liabilitiesi) Financial Liabilitiesa) Borrowings 13 48,294,542 49,345,018 64,195,677b) Other non current liabilities 14 11,906,294 10,811,294 10,761,294ii) Long Term Provisions 15 10,644,075 17,516,011 25,830,067Total Non Current Liabilities (D) 70,844,911 77,672,323 100,787,038
Current Liabilitiesi) Financial Liabilitiesa) Borrowings 16 37,151,236 54,095,569 62,078,247b) Trade Payables 44,538,435 36,835,235 35,015,057c) Other Financial Liabilities 17 182,655,125 164,889,573 142,138,064ii) Other current liabilities 18 33,014,870 21,671,876 19,834,292iii) Short Term Provisions 19 22,422,789 21,298,869 13,797,920Total Current Liabilities (E ) 319,782,455 298,791,122 272,863,580
Total Equity ad Liabilities C+D+E 325,019,324 331,332,985 344,714,441
For S.N.S ASSOCIATESChartered Accountants For and on behalf ofthe BoardFirm Reg No. 006297S Whole time Director              Director-sd-S. Nagarajan, Partner. Chief Financial officer Company SecretaryMembership No. 020899.
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NEYCER INDIA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

Note
No.

Figures for the
current

reporting
period

31-3-2018

Figures for the
previous
reporting

period
31-3-2017

INCOMERevenue From Operations 20 181,312,122 194,967,023Less: Excise Duty 4,273,708 17,996,931177,038,414 176,970,092Other Income 21 8,035,086 6,433,633
Total Revenue 185,073,500 183,403,725
EXPENSESCos t of raw materials and componentsconsumed 22 19,045,420 17,249,685Purchase of stock-in-trade 24,667,723 20,942,067Changes in inventories of finished goods andwork-in-progress 23 - 576,664 5,814,576Employee Benefit Expenses 24 51,487,415 51,895,338Finance Cost 14 11,007,582 16,200,653Depreciation and amortization expenses 4 10,062,294 10,824,064Other Expenses 26 95,608,383 82,338,132211,302,153 205,264,515Profit before exception and extraordinary itemsand tax - 26,228,653 - 21,860,790Extraordinary itemsProfit before tax - 26,228,653 - 21,860,790Tax ExpensesCurrent Tax - -Deferred Tax - -Profit after tax - 26,228,653 - 21,860,790
Other Comprehensive IncomeRemeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans - 5,751,071 - 5,666,507Tax effect on above -Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year - 5,751,071 - 5,666,507Total Comprehensive Income for the yearcomprising Profit and - 20,477,582 - 16,194,283Other Comprehensive incomeEarnings per Equity Share (Basic and Diluted) - 2.58 - 2.15
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CASHFLOW STATEMENT
Year ended

31-3-2018 31-3-2017
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIESProfit for the year before tax - 26,228,653 - 21,860,790Adjustments forDepreciation 10,062,294 10,824,064Interest Expense 11,007,582 16,200,653Interest income 210,519 323,362Profit on sal of assets 2,499Operating profit before working capitalchanges - 5,369,296 4,838,066Adjustments for changes inOther Non current financial assets 1,753,175 - 125,787Trade Receivables 1,167,927 2,247,816Inventories - 1,831,917 5,878,348Other Current Assets - 3,215,991 - 2,898,888Trade Payables 7,703,200 1,820,178Bank deposits under lien - 601,607 - 159,379Remeasurement of defined bebefitobligations 5,751,071 5,666,507Other Financial Liabilities 17,765,552 22,751,509Other Current Liabilities 11,342,994 1,837,584Other Non-Current Liabilities 1,095,000 50,000Long Term Provisions - 6,871,936 - 8,314,056Short term provisions 1,123,920 7,500,949Cash Generated from operations 29,812,092 41,092,847Income tax paid (net) -Net Cash generated from Operations (A) 29,812,092 41,092,847
B. CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIESPurchase of Property, Plant and Equipment - 976,350 - 2,394,726Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant andEquipment - 2,499Interest income 210,519 323,362Net cash (used in)/from Investing activities (B) - 765,831 - 2,068,865
C. CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIESInterest expense - 11,007,582 - 16,200,653
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Repayment of Non Current Borrowings - 1,050,476 - 14,850,659Proceeds from current borrowings - 16,944,333 - 7,982,678Net cash (used in)/from Financing Activities © - 29,002,391 - 39,033,990Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cashequivalents (A)+(B)+© 43,870 - 10,008Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents(excludingdeposits under lien) 223,795 233,803Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 267,665 223,795
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018.
Basis of preparation on Financial StatementsThe Financial Statements upto the year ended 31st March 2017 were prepared under theAccounting Standards Rules 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013 (Indian GAAP)As per the Notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the adoption of Ind AS hasbecome mandatory for the Company with effect from the financial year commencing on 1st April2017. Accordingly the Company has adopted Ind AS from 1st April 2017 (the Transition Date)and the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2018 have been prepared inaccordance with the principles laid down in Ind AS.The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of theCompany and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Companyoperates.The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the followingassets and liabilities:(i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair values (please refer accounting policyregarding financial assets and financial liabilities)
First time adoption of IND ASThe Company has restated the Financial Statements as at 1st April 2016, being the TransitionDate on the following basis:(i) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been valued at historical cost and the revaluation ofcertain assets carried out in earlier years have been reversed and the value of Property, Plant andEquipment considered at the historical cost as on the Transition Date.(ii) The accounting for employee benefits have been carried out in accordance with the provisionsof Ind AS 19 and necessary adjustments have been made in the Financial Statements.
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Exemptions availed under Ind AS 101a) Property, Plant and EquipmentThe historical cost of the Property, Plant and Equipment as at the Transition Date     is adoptedas the deemed cost.b) Investments in other companiesThe Company has decided to carry its investments in other companies at deemed which is theprevious GAAP carrying amount as on the date of transition to Ind AS.c) Interest Free Sales tax LoanThe Company has elected to use the previous GAAP carrying amount of the Interest Free SakesTax Kiabas the carrying amount of the Loan in the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet.d) Fair Value of Financial Assets and LiabilitiesAs per Ind AS Exemption,  the Company has not fair valued the financial assets and liabilitiesretrospectively, and has measured the same prospectively.
Significant Accounting Policies

a) Use of EstimatesThe preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted IndianAccounting Standards (Ind AS) principles, requires the management to make estimates andassumption that affect the reported amounts of the assets and liabilities and disclosure ofcontingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the result of operations duringthe reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the managements ‘best knowledge ofcurrent events and actions, the actual results could differ from these estimates.
b) Property, Plant and EquipmentProperty, Plant and Equipment are accounted for at the deemed cost which is  the historicalcost as per the previous GAAP. Depreciation is provided over the remaining useful life of theassets, as per Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 on Straight Line Basis in the case ofProperty, Plant and Equipment of PTFE Segment and written down value basis in respect of otherassets.
c) InventoriesThe Inventories of raw materials, stores and spares, Finished Goods and Work-in- progressare valued at lower of cost or realisable value. The cost in respect of Raw Materials and Stores andSpares are determined on the basis of weighted average cost.
d) Foreign Currency TransactionsForeign exchange transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the date ofthe transactions. Assets and liabilities in foreign currency are translated at the rate of exchangedifference prevailing on the reporting date. Gains or losses,    if any, arising therefrom arerecognized in the Profit and Loss Account.
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e) Revenue RecognitionRevenue from sale of goods is recognized when significant risks and rewards of the ownershipof the goods is assed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from sale of goods ismeasured at the value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and discounts.
f) Research and DevelopmentResearch and Development expenses not resulting in tangible property/equipment arecharged to Revenue.
g) Borrowing CostsInterest and other cost in connection with borrowing of funds to the extent related/ attributedto the acquisition/construction of qualifying fixed assets are capitalized upto the date when suchassets are ready for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are charged to Profit and LossAccount.
h) InvestmentsLong Term Investments are carried at cost.
i) Employee BenefitsThe Company is contributing to Provident Fund for the employees and the same is remitted toRegional Provident Fund Commissioner and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.The Company has a group gratuity scheme duly recognized by the Commissioner of Income taxand the annual liability determined by the Life Insurance Corporation of India is remitted aspremium and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as actuarially based determined onProjected Unit Credit Method as per Ind AS 19.The liability in respect of leave wages is being accounted for on accrual basis based on actuarialvaluation using Projected Unit Credit Method.
j) Impairment of AssetsAs at the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount of assets is tested for impairment so as todetermine:i) the extent of recognition of impairment loss, if any, required orii) the reversal, if any, required of impairment loss recognized in the previous periods,Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, such excess isrecognized as impairment loss and charged in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
k) Provisions and contingent liabilitiesProvision is recognised in respect of present obligation requiring settlement by outflow of resourcesand of which reliable estimate of the amount of obligation could be made.Contingent liability is not recognised and is disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resourcesembodying economic benefit is remote. Present obligation arising from the past events and theexistence of which is subject to accurance or non occurrence of an in certain future event is disclosed.
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A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITALBalance as at 31-3-2016 101519160Changes in Equity Share Capital during theyear 2016-17 -Balance as at 31-3-2017 101,519,160Changes in Equity Share Capital during theyear 2017-18 -Balance as at 31-3-2018 101,519,160
B. OTHER EQUITY

SharePremium CapitalReserve CentralSubsidy GeneralReserve Surplus Othercomprehensive incomeBalance as at 1-4-2016 74,400 32,468 2,500,000 25,361,450 - 158,423,655Add: Profit/OCI for theyear - 21,860,790 5,666,507Less: Restatement ofdefined benefit plansTransferred to otherComprehensive Incomeas at 1-4-2016 -1,476,508 - 1,476,508Balance as at 31-3-2017 74,400 32,468 2,500,000 25,361,450 - 178,807,937 41,89,999Less: Remeasurementof defined benefit planstransferred to OtherComprehensive 57,51,071Add: Profit for the yearafter tax - 26,228,653Balance as at 31-3-2018 74,400 32,468 2,500,000 25,361,450 - 205,036,590 99,41,070
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4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
GROSS BLOCKAs at Additions Deletions Balance Additions Deletions Balance1-4-2016 2016-17 2016-17 31-3-2017 2017-18 2017-18 31-3-2018Freehold 527,255 527,255 527,255Buildings 12,026,489 12,026,489 - 12,026,489Plant and Equipment 271,480,518 271,480,518 675,092 272,155,610Furniture andFixtures 684,962 670,750 1,355,712 36,868 1,392,580Vehicles 10,492,911 863,938 11,356,849 11,356,849Office Equipment 1,545,858 714,743 2,260,601 155,976 2,416,577Computers 2,299,081 145,295 2,444,376 108,414 2,552,790Software 484,406 484,406 484,406Buildings 325,535 325,535 325,535Plant and Equipment 3,365,974 3,365,974 3,365,974Electrical installation 80,481 8,860 71,621 71,621303,313,470 2,394,726 8,860 305,699,336 976,350 - 306,675,686

DEPRECIATION BLOCKAs at For theyear Deletions Balance For theYear Deletions Balance1-4-2016 2016-17 2016-17 31-3-2017 2017-18 2017-18 31-3-2018Buildings 11,285,988 110,007 11,395,995 18,132 11,414,127Plant and Equipment 122,941,399 8,690,741 131,632,140 8,695,535 140,327,675Furniture andFixtures 561,717 145,811 707,528 189,217 896,745Vehicles 7,889,485 1,060,890 8,950,375 773,866 9,724,241Office Equipment 1,347,317 353,220 1,700,537 78,826 1,779,363Computers 1,723,250 300,545 2,023,795 297,110 2,320,905
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Software 304,800 161,469 466,269 - 466,269Buildings 325,534 - 325,534 - 325,534Plant and Equipment 3,353,102 1,381 3,354,483 9,608 3,364,091Electrical installation 80,480 - 8,860 71,620 - 71,620
149,813,072 10,824,064 8,860 160,628,276 10,062,294 - 170,690,570

NET BLOCK 31-3-2018 31-3-2017Freehold 527,255 527,255Buildings 612,362 630,494Plant and Equipment 131,827,935 139,848,378Furniture and Fixtures 495,835 648,184Vehicles 1,632,608 2,406,474Office Equipment 637,214 560,064Computers 231,885 420,581Software 18,137 18,137Research and Development AssetsBuildings 1 1Plant and Equipment 1,883 11,491Electrical installation 1 1
135,985,116 145,071,060
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5. NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS 31-3-2018 31-3-2017 1-4-2016Investments in Equity Instruments (fully paid up)Non Trade - UnquotedIn OthersInvestment in Neycer Employees Co-operativeSociety 150,000 150,000 150,000
150,000 150,000 150,000

6. OTHER FINANANCIAL ASSETSUnsecured - Considered goodSecurity Deposits 2,099,812 3,852,987 3,727,200
2,099,812 3,852,987 3,727,200

7. INVENTORIESRaw Materials 1,398,127 1,601,787 2,498,122Work in progress 1,242,694 950,640 2,082,891Finished Goods 54,587,017 54,148,746 57,904,565Stock in trade 6,719,063 6,872,723 7,799,228Stores and Spares 10,142,678 8,683,766 7,851,204
74,089,579 72,257,662 78,136,010

8. TRADE RECEIVABLESUnsecured - Considered good 32,401,699 32,902,532 35,150,348Unsecured - Considered doubtful 48,187,272 48,187,272 48,187,272Less: Provision for doubtful debts -48,187,272 -48,187,272 -48,187,272Loss on fair valuation -667,094
31,734,605 32,902,532 35,150,348Of the aboveDebts outstanding for a period exceeding sixmonthsfrom the date they became due 19,059,821 19,313,095 17,000,747
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Other Debts 61,529,150 61,776,709 66,336,873Receivables are after considering loss on fairvaluation amounting to 667,094 - -
9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSCash on hand 20,413 34,489 7,693Balance with BanksIn Current Account 247,252 189,306 226,110In Deposits offered as security for credit facilities 3,144,132 2,542,525 2,383,146

3,411,797 2,766,320 2,616,949
10. OTHER CURRENT ASSETSUnsecured - Considered GoodAdvance to suppliers 15,930,051 21,388,742 19,200,701Other Advances 14,385,913 5,723,109 5,010,228Advances to Related Parties -Holding Company, Varun Ventures P Ltd.Earnest Money DepositsTax Payments pending adjustment (net of provision) 797,457 785,579 787,613Other Advances - Considered doubtful 1,451,537 1,451,537 1,451,537Less: Provision -1,451,537 -1,451,537 -1,451,537

31,113,421 27,897,430 24,998,542
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11. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
SHARE CAPITAL 31.03.2018 31.03.2017 01.04.2016Authorised:2,97,00,000 EquityShares of Rs.10/- each 297,000,000 297,000,000 297,000,0003,00,000 CumulativeRedeemable PreferenceShares of Rs.10/- each 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000300,000,000 300,000,000 300,000,000Issued Share Capital1,01,63,263 EquityShares of Rs.10/- each 101,632,630 101,632,630 101,632,63015,000 9.5% CumulativeRedeemable PreferenceShares of Rs.10/- each 150,000 150000 150,000101,782,630 101,782,630 101,782,630Subscribed and Paid upEquity Share capital1,01, 51,916 Equity Shares of Rs.10 eachfully paid up 101,519,160 101,519,160 101,519,160101,519,160 101,519,160 101,519,1609.5% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10/- eachaggregating to Rs.1,50,000/-which had fallen due for redemption ON 15 June 1993 has been disclosed under Other Financial Liabilities(Note No.16.)
Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the
year Particulars No. ofShares No. of Shares No. of SharesOutstanding at thebeginning of the year 10,151,916 10,151,916 10,151,916Outstanding at the end ofthe year 10,151,916 10,151,916 10,151,916
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Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than
5% sharesS.No Name of theshareholder No. of shares Percentage of shares held31.03.2018 31.03.2017 01.04.2016 31.03.2018 31.03.2017 01.04.20161 Varun VenturesPrivate Limited 6,000,000 6,000,000 59.10% 59.10% 0.00%2 Sriven VenturesPrivate Limited 6,000,000 0.00% 0.00% 59.10%3 CDS Projects Limited 1,330,000 1,330,000 1,330,000 13.10% 13.10% 13.10%4 Sparta HoldingsLimited 1,207,789 1,207,789 1,207,789 11.90% 11.90% 11.90%

5 Sparta HoldingsLimited 952,960 952,960 952,960 9.39% 9.39% 9.39%Aggregate Number of Equity Shares allottedas fully paid up without payment beingreceived in cash pursuant to order of BIFRdated 26-10-2018 1,330,000 1,330,000
12 OTHER EQUITY

SharePremium CapitalReserve CentralSubsidy GeneralReserve Surplus OthercomprehensiveincomeBalance as at 1-4-2016 74,400 32,468 2,500,000 25,361,450 - 158,423,655Add: Profit/OCI for theyear -21,860,790 5,666,507Less: Restatement ofdefined benefit plansTransferred to otherComprehensive Incomeas at 1-4-2016 -1,476,508 - 1,476,508Balance as at 31-3-2017 74,400 32,468 2,500,000 25,361,450 - 178,807,937 41,89,999Less: Remeasurement ofdefined benefit planstransferred to OtherComprehensive 57,51,071Add: Profit for the yearafter tax -26,228,653Balance as at 31-3-2018 74,400 32,468 2,500,000 25,361,450 - 205,036,590 99,41,070
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13. BORROWINGS 31-3-2018 31-3-2017 01-04-2016From Banks -Term Loan I - - 6,084,000Term Loan II - - 7,299,000Working Capital Term Loan - 1,184,000Car Loans From BanksHDFC Bank 294,542 1,345,018 1,628,677
From OthersFrom a company 48,000,000 48,000,000 48,000,000

48,294,542 49,345,018 64,195,677The Term Loans from Banks are secured by a first charge on the fixed assets and movables of theCompany present and future subject to prior charges created in company's bankers for securingworking capital requirements. Car Loans from Banks are secured by a charge on the carspurchased out of the said loans. The car loans repayable in equated monthly installments whichis being repaid as per the terms and conditions and there are no defaults in respect of theseloans. The Borrowings from a Company is repayable after the completion of the repayment of theloans availed from Banks.
14. OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIESTrade Deposits 11,862,000 10,767,000 10,717,000Deposits from contractors 44,294 44,294 44,294

11,906,294 10,811,294 10,761,294

15. OTHER LONG TERM PROVISIONSProvision for gratuity 9,443,095 16,275,870 24,592,830Provision for leave salary 1,200,980 1,240,141 1,237,237
10,644,075 17,516,011 25,830,067

16. BORROWINGS
(i) From BanksCash Credit - Secured 37,151,236 54,095,569 62,078,247Secured by hypothecation of all stocks of raw materials, stores  and spares, work in progress,finished goods and book debts and also by way of first charge on the fixed assets of the Companyand guaranteed by the previous Whole time Director and Spartek Ceramics India Limited
17. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIESCurrent Maturities of Long TermBorrowingsTerm Loan 78,960,000 85,684,000 74,951,000Car Loans 1,030,810 1,014,898 862,168Interest free excise loan 15,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000Interest accrued but not due on loans 78,371,768 52,612,920 42,476,7629.5% Cumulative Redeemable Preference 150,000 150,000 150,000
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Shares of Rs.10/- eachAdvance from customers 9,142,547 10,427,755 8,698,134
182,655,125 164,889,573 142,138,064The 9.5% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each fell due for redemptionon15.06.1993/ The Companny has not yet redeemed the said Redeemable Preference Shares andpending redemition these are shown as Current Liability.

18. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIESOther PayablesExcise Duty 16,367,565 18,873,085 16,585,981VAT payable 762,330 2,422,559 2,864,142IGST payable 13,463,661Service tax payable 1,486,015TDS payable 219,709 163,348 141,879TCS payable 1,291 2,013 45,186Others 714,299 210,871 197,104
33,014,870 21,671,876 19,834,292

19. SHORT TERM PROVISIONSProvision for employee benefits 21,355,984 20,232,064 12,731,115Others 1,066,805 1,066,805 1,066,805
22,422,789 21,298,869 13,797,920
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20. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 31-3-2018 31-3-2017Sale of products 146,792,273 161,989,184Sale of trading goods 33,681,748 32,097,606Other Operating Income Scrap sales 838,101 880,233
181,312,122 194,967,023

21. OTHER INCOMEForeign exchange gains 1,746Profit on sale of assets 2,499Interest received 210,519 323,362Reversal of provision of Excise Duty on closingstock as at 31-3-2017 6,008,333 -Credit balances written back 52,696 -Excess provision written back 1,137,958Insurance claim received 199,546 6,082,650Other income 424,288 25,122
8,035,086 6,433,633

22. COST OF RAW MATERIALS AND
COMPONENTS CONSUMEDRaw materials and components 19,045,420 17,249,685

19,045,420 17,249,685

23. CHANGES IN INVENTORY OF FINISHED
GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESSOpening StockFinished Goods 61,021,469 65,703,794Work in progress 950,640 2,082,89161,972,109 67,786,685Closing StockFinished Goods 61,306,080 61,021,469Work in progress 1,242,693 950,640

62,548,773 61,972,109(Increase)/Decrease in inventories of FinishedGoods and Work in progress - 576,664 5,814,576
24. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSESsalaries, Wages and Bonus 40,046,551 34,798,023Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 3,823,131 4,149,680Welfare Expenses 4,831,382 3,898,136Contribution to Gratuity 2,728,445 8,830,517Provision for Leave Salary 57,906 218,982

51,487,415 51,895,338
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25. FINANCE COSTSInterest Expense 10,647,645 15,416,632Other Borrowing Costs 359,937 784,021
11,007,582 16,200,653

26. OTHER EXPENSESConsumption of Stores and Spares 7,715,160 8,408,949Power and fuel 43,080,379 37,908,814Rent 1,987,500 2,588,500Insurance 524,416 306,938Rates and Taxes 2,417,871 696,237Freight and Forwarding 302,166 661,883Postage and Telephone 1,121,301 1,005,344Printing and Stationery 700,633 713,677Travelling and Conveyance 12,333,014 9,448,908Payment to Auditors:For Audit 200,000 150,000For Certification 50,000 36,000For Reimbursement of expenses - 23,000For Service tax - 27,400Repairs and Maintenance -Buildings 729,998 329,941Plant & Machinery 5,058,375 4,274,637Selling expenses 3,958,337 2,142,786Professional fees 5,125,368 3,498,944Advertisement and Sales Promotion 365,595 348,728Interest on Delayed Remittance of Provident Fund 346,981 156,629Interest on delayed remittance of ESI 12,964 3,604Interest on delayed remittance of Excise Duty 3,314,442 4,058,961Interest on delayed remittance of Service tax - 72,812Interest on delayed remittance of VAT and CST 1,152,980 727,462Interest on delayed remittance of gratuity - 108,670Interest on delayed remittance of TDS - 7,159Interest on delayed remittance to TANGEDCO - 84,684Increase/(Decrease) in Excise Duty on ClosingStock - - 425,508Miscellaneous Expenses 4,426,109 4,972,973Loss on fair valuation of financial assets 667,094Advances written off 17,700
95,608,383 82,338,132
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Contingent Liabilities on account of: 31.03.2018 31.03.2017a) Guarantees given by Banks on behalf of the Company         7163647        7163647b) Inland Letters of Credit issued by Banks 2238975        4615827c) Arrears of dividend on cumulative preference shares 92030              92030d) Tamil Nadu General sales tax demand disputed for the assessment year 1994-95 - Rs.9320618.The demand raised by the Commercial tax officer in respect of financial transactionrepresenting lease of machineries in erstwhile tiles division has been set-aside in appeal by theAppellate Assistant Commissioner and remanded back to the Assessing Authority for freshconsideration, which is pending before the Deputy Commercial Tax officer. In view of thedisputed nature of the demand, the same has not been provided for.e) Tamil Nadu General sales tax demand disputed for the assessment year 2001-02 – Rs.34415091.The demand has been raised by the Assistant Commissioner (Commercial Taxes). Thecompany has filed an appeal against the order in respect of alleged difference in reportedturnover in erstwhile tiles division before the Appellate Assistant Commissioner (Commercialtaxes), which is pending. In view of the disputed nature of the demand, the same has not beenprovided for.f) Central sales tax demand disputed for the assessment year 2001-02 – Rs. 5056861.The demand has been raised by the Assistant Commissioner (Commercial taxes) for non-submission of 'C' form in respect of inter-state sales and non-submission of export documentsand Form-H in respect of export sales. The company has filed an appeal against the orderbefore the Appeallate Assistant Commissioner (Commercial Taxes), which is pending. In viewof the disputed nature of the demand, the same has not been provided for.g) Tamil Nadu value added tax demand disputed for the assessment year 2011-12 – Rs.5793862.The demand has been raised by the Assistant commissioner (Commercial taxes) for nonreversal of VAT input Tax Credit claimed by the company relating to stock destroyed due to"Thane Cyclone". The company has filed a writ petition before the Hon'ble High Court ofMadras for quashing the proceedings. In view of the disputed nature of the demand, the samehas not been provided for.h) ESI demand disputed for the period May 2005 to March 2009 – Rs.647330.In respect of the above period, demand has been raised by the Director (Revenue), EmployeesState Insurance Corporation, Chennai, for non-payment of contribution within the time limit
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prescribed. The company has filed petition before ESI labour court for waiver of damages. Inview of the disputed nature of the demand, the same has not been provided for.i) PF demand disputed for the period March 2011 to March 2014 – Rs. 4722090.In respect of the above period, demand had been raised by the Regional Provident Fund,Commissioner, Sub-Regional office, Trichirapalli for subterfuge wages in respect of regularemployees and due for evaded wages in contract employees. The Company has obtained a stayin respect of the demand and appeal has been filed before the Employees Provident FundAppellate Tribunal, Delhi. In view of the disputed nature of the demand, the same has not beenprovided for.28. The company had been declared Sick Industrial Company within the meaning of SickIndustrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985.29. Since the company is a Sick Industrial Company within the meaning of the Sick IndustrialCompanies (Special provisions) Act. 1985, the company based on legal opinion, had filed apetition before BIFR, seeking leave for redemption of 9.5% Cumulative Redeemable preferenceshares, ought to have been redeemed before 15th June 1993 and the same is pending.30. As in earlier years, the company has not recognised interest dues on loans from bank and bodycorporate and the arrears of interest payable to bank aggregate to Rs.6.39 crores subject toreconciliation has been converted by the bank during the year 2011-12 into Funded interest Term loan,of which Rs.49.25 lakhs paid has been recognized upto year ended 31.03.2015 and since then nopayment has been made. The repayment of FITL in EMI terms scheduled to commence from January2012 has not been made and the same will be recognised as and when the funded interest is services.The company has not recognized interest dues on loans from VIZ projects, a body corporate upto31.03.2017 to an extent of Rs.4.46 crores and for the year amounting to Rs.48 lakhs. The interest is forthe period from 2009-10 with a right to recompense from the date of debt restructuring and the samewill be recognized as and when it is serviced.
During the year ended 31.03.2015, the bank had converted pending reconciliation by thecompany, unrecognised interest dues of Rs.37 lakhs of Term loan - I pertaining to the period29.06.2011 to 31.12.2011, Rs.87 lakhs of Term loan II pertaining to period 29-10-2010 to31.12.2011, Rs.57 lakhs of Cash credit facility pertaining to the period 01.01.2011 to 31.12.2011into Funded interest term loan II of which Rs.5 lakhs paid during the year ended 31.03.2015 hasbeen recognised. The repayment of FITL II in EMI terms scheduled to commence from September2014 has not been made and same will be recognised as and when the funded interest is services.
31. Commitments:Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for.32. In the absence of information from the company's creditors with regard to submission ofmemorandum with the specified authority as required under MSMED Act, 2006, the company is
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unable to furnish the information under the said Act and there are no overdue principalamounts/interest paid or payable.33. The company has not discontinued any operations during the year.34.1. Reconciliation of Net Profit as per IGAAP and Ind ASNet Profit as per IGAAP for the year31-3-2017 - 16,194,283Add: Ind AS adjustment on account ofrestatementof gains on defined benefit plansto OtherComprehensive Income - 5,666,507Net Profit as per Ind AS for the year31-3-2017 - 21,860,790
34.2
Financial Risk Management and Objectives and PoliciesThe Company's principal financial liabilities comprises of borrowings, and trade payables, The mainpurpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Company's principalfinancial assets, comprise of trade receivables, investments and cash and cash equivalents that derivedirectly from the Company's operations. The Company's activities expose it to various risks includingmarket risk, quality risk and credit risk. Company's overall risk management focuses on theunpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financialperformance of the Company.

34.3 Disclosure of Fair Value MeasurementsThe Fair value of financial assets and liabilities are determined at the amount at which theinstrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in aforced or liquidation sale. The fair value of cash and deposits, trade and other short termreceivables, trade payables, other current liabilities, loans from banks and other financialinstruments approximate to the carrying amounts.
Financial Instruments by category

As at 31-3-2018
FIXED ASSETS

AmortisedCost
Fair ValueThroughProfit andLoss

FairvalueThroughOtherComp.Income Carryingamt Fair ValueLong Term Investment 150,000 - - 150,000 150,000Other financial assets 2,099,812 - - 2,099,812 2,099,812Trade Receivables - 31,734,605 - 31,734,605 31,734,605
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Cash and cashequivalents 3,411,797 - - 3,411,797 3,411,797
Financial LiabilitiesLong Term Borrowings 48,294,542 - - 48,294,542 48,294,542Other non currentliabilities 11,906,294 - - 11,906,294 11,906,294Short term borrowings 37,151,236 - - 37,151,236 37,151,236Trade payables 44,538,435 - - 44,538,435 44,538,435Other financial liabilities 182,655,125 - - 182,655,125 182,655,125
As at 31-3-2017Long Term Investment 150,000 - - 150,000 150,000Other financial assets 3,852,987 - - 3,852,987 3,852,987Trade Receivables 32,902,532 - - 32,902,532 32,902,532Cash and cashequivalents 2,766,320 - - 2,766,320 2,766,320
Financial Liabilities - - - -Long Term Borrowings 49,345,018 - - 49,345,018 49,345,018Other non currentliabilities 10,811,294 - - 10,811,294 10,811,294Short term borrowings 54,095,569 - - 54,095,569 54,095,569Trade Payables 36,835,235 - - 36,835,235 36,835,235Other financial liabilities 164,889,573 - - 164,889,573 164,889,573
As at 1-4-2016Long Term Investment 150,000 - - 150,000 150,000Other financial assets 3,727,200 - - 3,727,200 3,727,200Trade Receivables 35,150,348 - - 35,150,348 35,150,348Cash and cashequivalents 2,616,949 - - 2,616,949 2,616,949
Financial Liabilities - - - -Long Term Borrowings 64,195,677 - - 64,195,677 64,195,677
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Other non currentliabilities 10,761,294Short term borrowings 62,078,247 - - 62,078,247 62,078,247Trade Payables 35,015,057 - - 35,015,057 35,015,057Other financial liabilities 142,138,064 - - 142,138,064 142,138,064
Note: The Company has opted for fair valuation of financial assets and liabilitiesprospectively with effect from the current financial year as per the option grantedunder Ind AS.
Fair Value HierarchyThe Company uses the following hierarchy for determining the fair value of the financial assetsand liabilities:Level 1 - Quoted prices in the market for financial assets or liabilitiesLevel 2 Other techniques for which all inputs which have significant effect on the recordedfair value observable, either directly or indirectly.Level 3 This technique uses inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair valuethat are not based on observable market data.

34.4. Employee Benefits
i) Provident FundThe Company is contributing to Provident Fund for its employees and the same is remittedto the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and the amount is charged to Profit and LossAccount.

ii) SuperannuationThe Company has a Superannuation Scheme for eligible employees and the annualliability is determined by Life Insurance Corporation of India and is remitted as premiumand charged to Profit and Loss Account.
iii) Leave encashmentIn respect of Leave Encashment, which is not funded, the Company makes a provision onactuarial basis, using Projected Unit Credit Method.
a) Assumptions usedDiscount Rate 7.40% 6.85%Salary Escalation 5.00% 7.00%Expected returnon plan assets 0.00% 0.00%Attrition rate 5.00% 5.00%Average age 46.18 47.90
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b) Movement in present value of Defined Benefit Plan (Leave salary) during the year

Opening value of DBO at the beginning of the year 1,629,933 1,570,696Current Service Cost 241,532 409,419Interest Cost 114,358 102,121Benefits paid - 169,102 - 159,745Actuarial (Gains)/Loss - 297,984 - 292,558Closing value of DBO at the end of the year 1,518,737 1,629,933
c) Movement in plan assets during the year

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning - -Interest income of the assets - -Employer contribution 169,102 159,745Benefits paid - 169,102 - 159,745Actuarial gain/(Loss) - -Fair value of plan assets at the end of theyear - -
d) Sensitivity AnalysisSignificant actuarial assumptions for determination of defined benefit obligation are discount rateand expected salary increase. The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based onreasonable possible changes of the respective assumptions outing at the end of the reported:If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher or lower, the defined benefit obligation wouldincrease by 52,962 60,195decrease by 48,275 54,497If the expected salary increases/decreases by 100 basis points, the defined benefit obligationwouldincrease by 34,851 37,393decrease by 33,921 36,431

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change inthe defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the range in assumptions would occur inisolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.  There is no changein the methods and assumptions used in preparing the above sensitivity analysis.
iv) GratuityThe Company has a group gratuity scheme which is administered by a separate trust and theannual liability as determined by Life Insurance Corporation of India, based on actuarialvaluation using projected unit credit method and is charged off to revenue.
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a) Assumptions usedDiscount Rate 7.40% 6.85%Salary Escalation 5.00% 7.00%Expected return on planassets 0.00% 0.00%Attrition rate 5.00% 5.00%Average Longevity atretirement age - pastservice 18.36 20.09Average age 46.18 48.33
b) Movement in present value of Defined Benefit Plan (Gratuity) during the yearOpening value of DBO at the beginning of theyear 21,674,335 29,629,280Current Service Cost 590,259 672,591Interest Cost 1,477,543 1,864,337Benefits paid - 3,415,071 - 4,825,366Actuarial (Gains)/Loss - 5,751,071 - 5,666,507Closing value of DBO at the end of the year 14,575,995 21,674,335
c) Movement in Plan assets during the yearFair value of plan assets at the beginning - -Interest income of the assets - -Employer contribution 4,825,366 4,825,366Benefits paid - 4,825,366 - 4,825,366Actuarial gain/(Loss) - -Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - -

d) Sensitivity AnalysisSignificant actuarial assumptions for determination of defined benefit obligation arediscount rate and expected salary increase. The sensitivity analysis below has beendetermined based on reasonable possible changes of the respective assumptions atthe end of the reported:If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher or lower, the defined benefit obligationwouldincrease by 288,958 510,572decrease by 269,980 475,738
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If the expected salary increases/decreases by 100 basis points, the defined benefit obligationwouldincrease by 309,311 526,776decrease by 294,709 500,780The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the definedbenefit obligation as it is unlikely that the range in assumptions would occur in isolation of oneanother as some of the assumptions may be correlated. There is no change in the methods andassumptions used in preparing the above sensitivity analysis.
e) The Company expects to make a contribution to the defined benefit plan (gratuity - funded)during the next financial year.

35. ADDITIONAL NOTES Qty. Value Qty. ValueRs. Rs.
a) Turnover 31.03.2017 31.03.2016Vitreous Chinasanitaryware 1993 142,466,022 1901 143992253Traded itemsa) Merchandise Fittings 31,572,923 28,216,427b) Sanitaryware (in pieces) 2,161,368 664 3,881,179c) Scrap 838,101 880233

177,038,414 176,970,092
b) Raw materials and components consumed MTClay 1,690 8,461,874 1,565 7,023,209Quartz and Feldspar 1433 4,940,792 1,332 4,759,028Zirconium O pacifier 10 1,230,960 27 2,812,232Glazes, Frits and Stains 78 3,655,420 1 952,582Chemicals and others 1 756,374 78 1,702,634

19,045,420 17,249,685
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Qty. Value Qty. ValueRs. Rs.
c) Opening and Closing
stock of goods produced:

Finished Goods:
Opening StockVitreous china sanitary ware 1238 54,148,746 1,215 57,904,565Traded itemsa) Merchandise Fittings 5,720,625 6,511,092b) Sanitary ware (in pieces) 1,152,098 814 1,288,137

61,021,469 65,703,794
Closing StockVitreous china sanitaryware 1,123 54,587,017 1,238 54,148,746Traded itemsa) Merchandise Fittings 5,838,424 5,720,625b) Sanitaryware (in pieces) 880,638 865 1,152,098

61,306,079 61,021,469

d)  Capacity and
Production:

Licenced Capacity :Vitreous China Sanitarware 10,000 10,000
Installed Capacity : (ascertified by theManagement)Vitreous China Sanitaryware 10,000 8,750
Actual Productionvitreous China Sanitarware 1,878 2,097

e) Value of Imports
calculated on CIF basis : Rs. Rs.Raw materials - -Stores and Spares - -Trading Goods 865,045 -

865,045 -

f) Expenditure in foreign
currency:Travelling Expenses 1,402,258 823,113
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g) Details regarding
consumption of imported
and indigenous materials % Rs. % Rs.1. Raw Materials &ComponentsImported - -Indigenous 100 100.00 17,249,685

100 - 100.00 17,249,6852. Stores & Spare PartsImported - -Indigenous 100 100.00 8,408,949
100.00 - 100.00 8,408,949

(i) Earnings in Foreign
Exchange1. Export of goods on FOBbasis Nil Nil2. Technical Services Nil Nil
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36.  Disclosures as required by the Accounting Standard 18 " Related Party
Disclosures"

are given below :

a)  Key Management PersonnelY Mohan Prasad, Whole time DirectorThirukalathiappan, Chief Financial OfficerG Raghavan, Company Secretary
b) Disclosure of Related Party Transactions and Year End Balances

C) Holding Company: Varun Ventures Private Limited
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.
Particulars Nature of Transaction Nature of TransactionRemuneration YearEndBalance Remuneration Year EndBalance
Key Management
PersonnelP.Thirukalathiappan, CFO 1,823,986 1,368,000
G Raghavan, CompanySecretary 120,000 120,000
Directors Sitting FeesDirectors have not been paid any sitting fee.
37. The Company operates in only one segment, viz., manufacture of Sanitaryware and hence thereare no reportable segments.38. Consequent to the introduction of Goods and Services Tax with effect from 1st July 2017, theTurnover is net of GST. In respect of the turnover upto 30th June 2017 for the current reportingperiod and for the turnover for the previous reporting period, the Turnover is inclusive of ExciseDuty.39. Earnings Per Share: Basic and Diluted

31-3-2018 31-3-2017Profit/(Loss) for the year - 26,228,653 - 21,860,790Number of Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each outstanding 10,151,916 10,151,916Earnings per Share basic and diluted - 2.58 - 2.15
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Note: Since the Preference shares issued are already due for redemption but not yet redeemed, theamount of preference dividend is not deducted in computing the Earnings Per Share.40. Previous year's figures have been regrouped to conform to current year's classification.
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M/S. NEYCER INDIA LIMITED
REGD.OFFICE: NO.145, ST. MARY’S ROAD, ALWARPET, CHENNAI 600 018

PHONE: 044 -45088111
WEBSITE: WWW.NEYCER.IN; E-MAIL: INVESTOR@NEYCER.IN

CIN: L26109TN1960PLC004145.

57th Annual General Meeting on Friday, 28th September, 2018 at 10.00 a.m.
PROXY FORM[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Managementand Administration) Rules, 2014]CIN L26109TN1960PLC004145Name of the Company NEYCER INDIA LIMITEDRegistered Office No.145, St. Mary’s Road, Alwarpet, Chennai 600 018Name of Member(s)Registered Address

Email IDFolio No./ DP ID – ClientIDI/We, being the Member(s) of and hold/holds__________shares of above named Company, herebyappoint:(1) Name...................................................Address:.......................................................... ..........Email ID:.............................................................Signature.......................... Or failing him/her(2) Name...................................................Address:.......................................................... ..........Email ID:.............................................................Signature.......................... Or failing him/her(3) Name...................................................Address:.......................................................... ..........Email ID:.............................................................Signature.......................... Or failing him/her



86

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 57TH AnnualGeneral Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 28th  September, 2018 at 10.00 a.m. at No.145,St. Mary’s Road, Alwarpet, Chennai 600 018 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of suchresolutions:
Resolution
Number

Resolution Vote

For Against Abstain
Ordinary Business
1 Adoption of Standalone and ConsolidatedAudited Financial Statements of the Companyfor the year ended 31 March, 2018 includingaudited Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2018and the Statement of Profit & Loss for theyear ended on that date and the reports of theBoard of the Directors and Auditors thereon.
2 Appointment of a Director in place of Mr. YMohan Prasad (DIN 01888892), who retiresby rotation and, being eligible, offers himselffor re-appointment.
Special Business
3 To re-appoint Mr. Ganapathy Krishnamoorthyas an Independent Director for a furtherperiod of 5 years
4. To re-appoint Mr. Bachiame as anIndependent Director for a further period of 5yearsSigned this........................day of............................................ 2018Signature ofMember(s): .................................................Signature of Proxyholder(s):....................................................................................

Notes:1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly stamped, completed and deposited at theRegistered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.  Itis optional to indicate your preference. If you leave columns ‘For, Against, Abstain’ blank against all or
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any of the resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he / she may deemappropriate.2. For the Resolutions, Statement setting out material facts thereon and notes please refer to the Noticeof the 57th Annual General Meeting.3. A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregatenot more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. In case a proxy isproposed to be appointed by a Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of theCompany carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person orMember.
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M/S. NEYCER INDIA LIMITED
REGD.OFFICE: NO.145, ST. MARY’S ROAD, ALWARPET, CHENNAI 600 018

PHONE:044 -45088111
WEBSITE: WWW.NEYCER.IN; E-MAIL: INVESTOR@NEYCER.IN

CIN: L26109TN1960PLC004145

ATTENDANCE SLIPPLEASE COMPLETE THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE VENUEFOR AGMName and addressof the registered memberFolio No./DP ID No./Client ID No.No. of SharesI hereby record my presence at the 57th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday,28th September, 2018 at 10.00 a. m. at No.145, St. Mary’s Road, Alwarpet, Chennai 600 018._______________________________________________________Signature of the Member/Joint Member/Proxy attending the MeetingElectronic Voting Event Number (EVEN) User ID Password

Note: Person attending the Meeting is requested to bring this Attendance Slip and Annual
Report with him/her. Duplicate Attendance Slip and Annual Report will not be issued at the
Annual General Meeting.



Neycer India Ltd.
145, St. Mary's Road, Chennai-600 018,India.

Ph: 044-45088111, Fax: 044-45028222
Web : www.neycer.in


